1990

Lynda C. Baldwin v. Willard D. Wood, Tonya
Glazier Wood, Max D. Burton Sr., Emily A. Burton,
Max D. Burton Jr., N.D. "Pete" Hayward, and Keith
L. Buckner : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The Utah Supreme Court has jurisdiction of this Appeal pursuant to Utah Code Annotated Section 78-2-2(j).

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. Did the District Court err in determining as a matter of law that a creditor must bring a separate action in order to set aside a fraudulent conveyance, rather than executing directly upon the property? The District Court's determination of this issue constitutes a legal conclusion. It is reviewed for

correctness and is afforded no deference by the Supreme Court. Territorial Sav, & Loan Ass'n v. Baird, 781 P.2d 452, 456 (Utah App. 1989).

2. Did the District Court err in ruling that the statute of limitations barred any action by Burtons to set aside the alleged fraudulent conveyances by Mr. Wood? The District Court's determination of this issue constitutes a legal conclusion and is reviewed for correctness. Id.

3. Did the District Court err in ruling that the Baldwins were bona fide purchasers of the Lauri Kay property? This issue appears to be factual in nature. However, the District Court disposed of the issue upon a Motion for Summary Judgment. Therefore, it is reviewed for correctness, and is afforded no deference by the Supreme Court. Territorial Sav. & Loan Ass'n v. Baird, 781 P.2d at 456, note 4.

4. Did the District Court err in ruling that Baldwins were entitled to an award of their attorney's fees as damages against Burtons? The District Court's determination of this issue constitutes a legal conclusion and is reviewed for correctness. Territorial Sav. & Loan Ass'n v. Baird, 781 P.2d at 456.

5. Did the District Court err in awarding "paralegal costs" to Baldwins? The District Court's determination of this issue constitutes a legal conclusion and is reviewed for correctness. Id.

6. Did the filing of bankruptcy by Mr. Wood on April 21, 1983, or his subsequent discharge in bankruptcy on August 15, 1983, affect Burtons' execution upon the Lauri Kay property? Although the District Court briefly mentioned this issue in its May 25, 1987 Memorandum Decision, the District Court made no expressed determination of the issue. Nevertheless, because this issue may be dispositive of some aspects of the present appeal, Appellants have addressed this issue herein. The issue is legal in nature, and is reviewed on a de novo basis by the Supreme Court. Allphin Realty, Inc. v. Sine, 595 P.2d 860, 862 (Ut. 1979).

DETERMINATIVE AUTHORITIES

The following authorities may be dispositive of certain aspects of this Appeal:

UCA 25-1-15 Rights of creditors with matured claims.

Where a conveyance or obligation is fraudulent as to a creditor, such creditor, when his claim has matured, may, as against any person, except a purchaser for fair consideration without knowledge of the fraud at the time of the purchase or one who has derived title immediately or mediately from such a purchaser:

(1) Have the conveyance set aside or obligation annulled to the extent necessary to satisfy his claim; or

(2) Disregard the conveyance, and attach, or levy execution upon, the property conveyed.

A purchaser who without actual fraudulent intent has given less than a fair consideration for the conveyance or obligation may retain the property or obligation as security for repayment.

UCA 78-22-1. Lien of judgment.

From the time the judgment of the district court or circuit court is docketed and filed in the office of the clerk of the district court of the county it becomes a lien upon all the real property of the judgment debtor, not exempt from execution, in the county in which the judgment is entered, owned by him at the time or by him thereafter acquired during the existence of said lien. A transcript of judgment rendered in a district court or circuit court of this state, in any county thereof, may be filed and docketed in the office of the clerk of the district court of any other county, and when so filed and docketed it shall have, for purposes of lien and enforcement, the same force and effect as a judgment entered in the district court in such county. The lien shall continue for eight years unless the judgment is previously satisfied or unless the enforcement of the judgment is stayed on appeal by the execution of a sufficient undertaking as provided by law, in which case the lien of the judgment ceases.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case involves an execution upon real property by the Burtons, which culminated in the issuance of a Sheriff's Deed to Burton Jr. and Emily Burton on May 7, 1987. Baldwins, who were the owners of the property on the date of execution, subsequently filed this action to set aside the Sheriff's Deed based upon the fact that Burtons' judgment debtor, Willard Wood, had no interest in the property at the time that Burton's Judgment was docketed. Burtons deny that Mr. Wood had no interest in the property.

Following the filing of cross motions for summary judgments by Burtons and Baldwins, the District Court issued its Memorandum Decision, dated May 25, 1989, which held that Wood had no interest in the property at the time that Burtons' judgment was docketed, so that Burtons' subsequent execution upon the property was wrongful. The District Court awarded damages to Baldwin

consisting of attorney's fees and "related damages" in the amount of Seven Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy-two and 66/100 Dollars (\$7,872.66). Such judgment included an unspecified amount for "paralegal costs." Burtons deny that Baldwins were entitled to an award of their attorney's fees or paralegal costs.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. During 1979 and 1980, Max D. Burton, Sr. ("Burton, Sr."), Willard D. Wood ("Mr. Wood") and Clealon B. Mann ("Mr. Mann") were partners in a land development and subdivision enterprise known as Woodcove Subdivision. (R. 046.)

2. On May 15, 1979 Mr. Wood and his wife, Tonya G. Wood ("Mrs. Wood"), as buyers, and Ralph L. Kofoed and Elaine L. Kofoed ("Kofoeds"), as sellers, entered into a Uniform Real Estate Contract, whereby the Woods purchased the Kofoeds' interest in certain real property ("the Lauri Kay property"), which is the subject matter of this action. (R. 226-228.)

3. On December 19, 1979 the Kofoeds, as grantors, executed a Warranty Deed in favor of Mr. and Mrs. Wood, as joint tenants, thereby conveying Kofoeds' interest in the Lauri Kay property to the Woods. Said Warranty Deed was recorded December 19, 1979. (R. 229.)

4. During 1980 an Agreement was reached between the aforementioned partners of the Woodcove Subdivision whereby Mr. Wood and Mr. Mann purchased Burton, Sr.'s interest in the project. Pursuant to said Agreement, Mr. Wood and Mr. Mann executed a

Promissory Note, dated February 6, 1980, in favor of Burton, Sr. and his wife, Emily A. Burton ("Mrs. Burton") in the amount of Thirty-five Thousand Dollars (\$35,000.00). (R. 046, 233.)

5. On May 1, 1980 Mr. Wood purported to convey his interest in the Lauri Kay property to Mrs. Wood by way of a Special Warranty Deed. Said Special Warranty Deed cites as consideration: "The sum of TEN DOLLARS and other good and valuable consideration" (Emphasis in original.) (R. 007.)

6. On May 26, 1980, Mr. and Mrs. Wood executed a Trust Deed in favor of Valley Bank and Trust ("Valley Bank"), through which the Lauri Kay property was transferred as security for a loan from Valley Bank to Woods in the amount of Twenty Thousand Dollars (\$20,000.00). (R. 560.)

7. On February 25, 1981 Burton, Sr. and Mrs. Burton commenced a legal action against Mr. Wood and Mr. Mann in the Third Judicial District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah, Case No. C-81-1568, seeking recovery of amounts due under the February 6, 1980 Promissory Note which were in default, plus interest. (R. 046, 231-232.)

8. On June 9, 1981, Summary Judgment was entered in said legal action in favor of Burton, Sr. and Mrs. Burton and against Mr. Wood and Mr. Mann, jointly and severally, in the amount of Thirty-eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$38,500.00) plus interest, attorney's fees and costs. (R. 047, 234.)

9. Prior to August 1981, Woods listed the Lauri Kay property for sale with Jean Lampe, a local realtor. The listing agreement was signed by Mr. Wood as the owner of the home. (R. 501.)

10. In August of 1981, Gregory Baldwin ("Mr. Baldwin") and Lynda C. Baldwin ("Mrs. Baldwin") entered into negotiations for the purchase of Woods' interest within the Lauri Kay property. During such negotiations, Mr. Wood stated that he was "under some financial duress," and was willing to take a lower price on the home." Deposition of Gregory Baldwin, dated November 11, 1987 (hereinafter cited as "Baldwin Depo."), page 5.¹

11. On August 24, 1981 Baldwins received a Commitment for Title Insurance ("Title Report") prepared by Western States Title Company ("Western States"). Said Title Report stated in part that: "Judgments have been searched in the names of . . . Willard D. Wood . . . and none were found of record." (R. 089-091.)

12. Notwithstanding the above-quoted statement within the August 24, 1981 Title Report regarding judgments in the name of Willard Wood, at the time that Western States issued said Title Report, its agents had actual knowledge of the June 9, 1981 judgment of Burton Sr. against Mr. Wood. Western States' agents

¹The depositions of Gregory Baldwin and Willard Wood were published in the District Court (R. 135-136).

have stated that they "do not recall" the reason that Burton Sr.'s judgment was omitted from the Title Report. (R. 110, 138).

13. On August 23, 1981 the Baldwins and the Woods entered into an Earnest Money Agreement for the purchase and sale of the Lauri Kay property. (R. 153-154.) Page 2 of said Earnest Money Agreement states in part: "Acceptance of offer contingent upon the successful transfer of lien from 2257 E. Laurie Kay Drive to building property by Valley Mortgage already agreed upon and scheduled to close on or before September 20, 1981." [sic] According to the Deposition of Willard Wood, dated November 11, 1987 (hereinafter cited as "Wood Depo."), page 17, this provision was placed in the Earnest Money Agreement at the behest of Baldwins. However, Gregory Baldwin testified that he was not familiar with the provision. (Baldwin Depo., page 9.) The Earnest Money Agreement was signed by both Mr. and Mrs. Wood as "Seller."

14. At the time that Woods and Baldwins commenced negotiations related to Baldwins' purchase of the property, the property was listed by Woods for sale at Two Hundred Sixty-five Thousand Dollars (\$265,000.00). As consideration for their purchase of the home, Baldwins paid Woods Fifty-seven Thousand Twenty-four and 33/100 Dollars (\$57,024.33), assumed a first mortgage to Equitable Life Insurance Company in the amount of Twenty-five Thousand Seven Hundred Eighty Dollars (\$25,780.00),

and assumed the Woods' obligation to Kofoeds under the May 15, 1979 Uniform Real Estate Contract, in the amount of One Hundred Twenty-one Thousand Six Hundred Ninety-five and 67/100 Dollars (\$121,695.67). (R. 153; Wood Depo., page 21.)

15. On September 30, 1981 Woods executed a Trust Deed upon the Lauri Kay property in favor of Kofoeds in consideration of Kofoeds' remaining equity within the property. Said Trust Deed was recorded on October 2, 1981. Mr. Wood signed said Trust Deed because, notwithstanding his execution of the May 1, 1980 Special Trust Deed to Mrs. Wood, he "still regarded [himself] as having an interest in said property." (R. 071; R. 235.) Mr. Wood also appears as a "Seller" upon the Sellers' Settlement Statement and the Buyers' Settlement Statement, each dated September 30, 1981. (R. 236-237.)

16. Also on September 30, 1981 Mr. and Mrs. Wood executed a Warranty Deed upon the Lauri Kay property in favor of Baldwins, subject only to the September 30, 1981 Trust Deed from Woods to Kofoeds and the underlying mortgage to Equitable Life Assurance Company, dated October 16, 1967. Said Warranty Deed was prepared by Western States and notarized by their closing agent and was recorded on October 2, 1981. (R. 238.) According to Baldwins, Mr. Wood executed said Warranty Deed because he appeared "to have some naked interest of record" in the property by virtue of his execution of the September 30, 1981 Trust Deed to Kofoeds. (R. 410; R. 413.)

17. On February 24, 1982 a Partial Satisfaction of Judgment was entered in the Burtons v. Wood/Mann lawsuit, pursuant to which Mann was released from the Judgment, and Burtons reserved their cause of action against Wood for the balance of the Judgment, consisting of Four Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-three and 73/100 Dollars (\$4,323.73) plus interest. (R. 240.)

18. On April 21, 1983 Mr. and Mrs. Wood filed a petition for voluntary bankruptcy under Chapter 7 of the United States Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Utah, Central Division. Burtons were listed as creditors within said bankruptcy proceeding. Kofoeds were not listed as creditors. The Lauri Kay property was not listed as an asset of the Woods. (R. 242-243.) Woods were discharged in bankruptcy on August 15, 1983 and their bankruptcy case was closed on December 15, 1985. (R. 470.)

19. During the summer of 1986 Burton, Sr. received a Notice of Default which indicated that the Lauri Kay property was about to be foreclosed under the September 30, 1981 Kofoed Trust Deed. Upon investigation, Burton, Sr. obtained a copy of a foreclosure report prepared by Surety Title Company, dated May 8, 1986. Said foreclosure report indicated that Burtons' judgment lien had attached to the Lauri Kay property behind the first mortgage of the Equitable Life Assurance Company and ahead of the September 30, 1981 Trust Deed from Woods to Kofoeds. (R. 047, 050-055.)

20. Prior to Burton Sr.'s receipt of the Notice of Default during the summer of 1986, Burtons had no knowledge of the May 1, 1980 conveyance from Mr. Wood to Mrs. Wood. (R. 047.)

21. On August 6, 1986 Burtons, through their prior attorney, obtained a Writ of Execution from the Third Judicial District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah, upon their Judgment against Mr. Wood. Said Writ commanded the sheriff or constable of Salt Lake County to levy upon and sell enough of the unexempt personal property or real property of Willard D. Wood to satisfy the Burtons' Judgment. (R. 037.)

22. On or about August 6, 1986 Burtons, through their prior attorney, issued a Praecipe directing the sheriff of Salt Lake County to levy upon the interest of Baldwins as "successors-in-interest of Willard D. Wood," in the Lauri Kay property. (R. 245-246.)

23. On August 11, 1986 the Salt Lake County Sheriff's Office issued a Notice of Real Estate Levy upon the interest of "Gregory Blake Baldwin and Linda Baldwin as successors-in-interest of Willard D. Wood . . ." in the Lauri Kay property. Said Notice of Real Estate Levy was recorded with the Salt Lake County Recorder on August 12, 1986. (R. 247.)

24. On August 12, 1986 the Salt Lake County Sheriff's Office issued a Notice of Real Estate Sale upon the interest of "Gregory Blake Baldwin and Linda Baldwin, successors-in-interest of Willard D. Wood . . ." in the Lauri Kay property. (R. 008.)

25. During approximately September of 1986 Max D. Burton, Jr. ("Burton, Jr.") purchased an assignment of Burton, Sr.'s interest in the Burton Judgment against Mr. Wood. (R. 266.)

26. On September 9, 1986 the Salt Lake County Sheriff's Office conducted an Execution Sale wherein Burton, Jr. and Mrs. Burton purchased the interest of the Baldwin's "as successors-in-interest of Willard D. Wood" in the Lauri Kay property. (R. 075-076.) Although Baldwins had notice of said execution sale, they did not attend or object to the sale, nor did Baldwins subsequently redeem the property. (R. 262.)

27. On January 16, 1987 the beneficial interest of Kofoeds under the September 30, 1981 Trust Deed was assigned to Robert L. Rice ("Mr. Rice"). (R. 260.) Mr. Rice is a personal friend and former Bishop of the Baldwins. (R. 505.)

28. During approximately January of 1987, Burton Sr. engaged in a conversation with Mr. Wood, wherein Mr. Wood stated that the reason for his execution of the May 1, 1980 Special Warranty Deed to Mrs. Wood was to protect the property from his creditors, and that he had received no consideration from Mrs. Wood for the transfer. (R. 047-048). Mr. Wood subsequently testified that the purpose for the transfer was to protect the property from his creditors, and that he received no consideration for the transfer. (Wood Depo., page 12.)

29. During May of 1987, Mr. Rice commenced a private foreclosure action under the September 30, 1981 Trust Deed. (R. 270.)

30. On May 7, 1987 the Salt Lake County Sheriff's Office issued a Sheriff's Deed conveying to Burton, Jr. and Mrs. Burton the interest of "Gregory Blake Baldwin and Linda Baldwin, successors-in-interest of Willard D. Wood . . ." in the Lauri Kay property. Said Sheriff's Deed was recorded on May 8, 1987. (R. 075-076.)

31. On June 10, 1987 Mr. Rice bid at the Trustee's Sale on the September 30, 1981 Trust Deed and received a "Trustee's Deed" on the property. Said Trustee's Deed was recorded June 18, 1987. (R. 269-271.)

32. On June 18, 1987 Robert L. Rice, as grantor, executed a Warranty Deed in favor of Derald A. Tilley, as grantee, upon the Lauri Kay Property. Said Warranty Deed was recorded June 18, 1987. (R. 272.)

33. On October 7, 1987, Derald A. Tilley, as grantor, executed a Quit Claim Deed in favor of Lynda C. Baldwin, upon the Lauri Kay property. Said Quit Claim Deed was recorded on October 8, 1987. (R. 280.)

34. On June 22, 1988, Lynda C. Baldwin, as grantor, executed a Quit Claim Deed in favor of the Lynda C. Baldwin Trust, upon the Lauri Kay property. Said Quit Claim Deed was recorded on June 23, 1988. (R. 281.)

35. The present action was filed on May 12, 1987. The Plaintiffs were initially designated as "Lynda Baldwin and Gregory Blake Baldwin." (R. 002.) On January 3, 1989 an Amended Complaint was filed in which Lynda C. Baldwin, in her own name and on behalf of the Lynda Baldwin Trust, was named as the sole plaintiff. (R. 189; R. 281.) (Lynda C. Baldwin and the Lynda C. Baldwin Trust are hereinafter collectively referred to as "Baldwin.")

36. On March 3, 1989 Baldwin filed a Motion for Summary Judgment upon her claims against the Burtons in the present action. (R. 423-424.) Following the submission of affidavits and legal memoranda by both parties, the District Court, per the Honorable Leonard H. Russon, issued its Memorandum Decision dated May 25, 1987 (R. 572-579), a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A," in which the Court held in summary:

(a) that at the time the Burton Judgment was entered against Mr. Wood, Mr. Wood had no interest within the Lauri Kay property to which said Judgment could attach;

(b) that if Burtons believed that the conveyance from Mr. Wood to Mrs. Wood was fraudulent Burtons were required to file a separate action to set aside such fraudulent conveyance;

(c) that the statute of limitations upon an action by Burtons to set aside the conveyance from Mr. Wood to Mrs. Wood as fraudulent had passed;

(d) that the Baldwins were bona fide purchasers of the Lauri Kay property;

(e) that the September 9, 1986 execution sale and the May 7, 1987 Sheriff's Deed to Burton Jr. and Mrs. Burton are null and void;

(f) that Burtons had wrongfully executed upon Baldwin's interest within the Lauri Kay property;

(g) that Mr. Wood filed for bankruptcy on April 21, 1983 and listed Burton Sr. as a judgment creditor. Mr. Wood was subsequently discharged in bankruptcy; and

(h) that the only remaining issue of fact was the amount of Mrs. Baldwin's damages, including attorney's fees.

37. On April 5, 1991 Baldwin, through her attorney, Dwight Epperson, filed an Affidavit of Attorney's Fees, which set forth, inter alia, the sum of Three Thousand One Hundred Ninety-two Dollars (\$3,192.00) in attorney's fees, Two Hundred Forty-five Dollars (\$245.00) in "secretarial fees," and Nine Thousand One Hundred Ninety-five and 19/100 Dollars (\$9,195.19) in "paralegal costs." (R. 641-658.)

38. On April 17, 1990, Burtons, through their present attorney, filed a Defendants' Objection to Proposed Order and

Judgment Approving Plaintiff's Attorney's Fees and Costs, wherein Burtons argued that Baldwin was not entitled to an award of her attorney's fees, secretarial fees or paralegal costs on the grounds that there was no legal basis for such an award. (R. 659-663.)

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