1990

Lynda C. Baldwin and Paul H. Richins v. Willard D. Wood, Tonya Glazier Wood, Max D. Burton Sr., Emily A. Burton, Max D. Burton Jr., N.D. "Pete" Hayward, and Keith L. Buckner : Brief of Appellee

Utah Supreme Court

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

## **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS**

### **ARGUMENT I**

#### **The Judgment Is Lien Only Against Unexempt Real Property Of The Judgment Debtor, Willard Wood, Owned At The Time**

The Judgment is a lien against only the unexempt real property of the judgment debtor, Willard Wood, owned by him at the time the Judgment is docketed, and not a lien against the property of any other person, particularly Lynda Baldwin who is not even a party to the Burton Lawsuit.

### **ARGUMENT II**

#### **The Judgment Is Void Pursuant To Willard Wood's Bankruptcy; And Judgment Lien Did Not Survive The Bankruptcy**

The Judgment is an void under 11 U.S.C., Section 524(a)(1), because of the bankruptcy of Willard Wood, and no lien survived Wood's Bankruptcy for the reason that there was never was a valid lien to begin with. Pursuant to Wood's Bankruptcy, Burtons were no longer creditors of Willard Wood.

### **ARGUMENT III**

#### **Burtons Had No Remedy To Levy Execution Against The Property Without A Valid Statutory Lien And An Enforceable Judgment**

A writ of execution may not lawfully issue under Rule 69(a) U.R.C.P., in absence of a valid lien supported by an enforceable and valid judgment. In this case, there was neither.

### **ARGUMENT IV**

#### **Burtons Had No Remedy To Bring An Equitable Action To Attempt To Set Aside The Willard Wood Deed Without An Enforceable Judgment**

Wood's Bankruptcy prohibited the Burton Group from bringing a new claim to attack the Willard Wood Deed as a fraudulent conveyance, since they were no longer creditors of Willard Wood. The Fraudulent Conveyance Act does not create a "new claim" following a bankruptcy.

## **ARGUMENT V**

### **The Burton Group Has Waived Any Claim Of Fraudulent Conveyance By Not Raising It As An Affirmative Defense In Their Answer**

The Burton Group did not raise fraud as an affirmative defense in their Answer, as required by Rule 8(c), U.R.C.P., nor pled it with particularity, as required by Rule 9(b), U.R.C.P. They have waived that defense and are precluded from later making or asserting a claim for fraudulent conveyance in response to a motion for summary judgment. If the Burton Group believed the Willard Wood Deed was a fraudulent conveyance, they were compelled to plead and proved it.

## **ARGUMENT VI**

### **Statute of Limitations Bars The Burton Group From Attacking Willard Wood Deed As Fraudulent Conveyance**

Burtons were chargeable with "constructive notice" of the allegedly fraudulent conveyance under the Willard Wood Deed at least when they became judgment creditors of Willard Wood, and the three-year statute of limitation began to run on June 9, 1981, the date the Judgment was docketed. Other facts may establish constructive notice prior to or slightly later than that date. The Burton Group is time-barred in asserting a claim for a fraudulent conveyance.

## **ARGUMENT VII**

### **The Willard Wood Deed Is Valid, And Has Never Been Set Aside Or Properly Challenged In Any Equitable Action**

The recorded Willard Wood Deed is prima facie genuine and valid. A conveyance which is fraudulent as to creditors is not absolutely void, but only voidable upon some affirmative action by an interested person. The Burton Group could have challenged the deed as a fraudulent conveyance prior to Wood's Bankruptcy, but didn't. They deemed it "unnecessary". Burtons wrongfully invoked the remedy of Section 25-1-15(2), U.C.A.

### **ARGUMENT VIII**

#### **Lynda Baldwin Was Deprived Of Her Property Without Due Process Under the Execution Proceedings**

Under the execution proceedings, Lynda Baldwin was deprived of a substantial property right without due process of law. She was not a party to the Burton Lawsuit, nor a judgment or execution debtor, nor a fraudulent transferee under any conveyance. There was no order authorizing a sale of her property.

### **ARGUMENT IX**

#### **Lynda Baldwin Is A Bona Fide Purchaser For Value And Has Never Lost That Status**

When Lynda Baldwin and Greg Baldwin purchased the Property from Tonya Wood, they were bona fide purchasers for value. Lynda Baldwin is not required to prove in the first instance that she was a bona fide purchaser. The burden was on Burtons to plead and prove she was not. She never lost that status, notwithstanding a trustee's sale.

### **ARGUMENT X**

#### **The Burton Group Wrongfully Levied Execution On Lynda Baldwins' Property Which Justified Setting Aside Execution Sale**

The Burton Group acquired a writ of execution without an enforceable judgment and without a valid statutory lien. They levied execution on Lynda Baldwin's property, who was not a judgment or execution creditor, or fraudulent transferee under any conveyance.

### **ARGUMENT XI**

#### **The Trial Court Correctly Awarded Lynda Baldwin Attorney Fees And Related Damages**

The trial court correctly awarded Lynda Baldwin damages of "attorney's fees and related damages" under (i) Section 78-27-56, U.C.A., (ii) wrongful execution, (iii) slander of title, (iv) Rule 11, U.R.C.P., or (v) a combination of them.

## **ARGUMENT XII**

### **Summary Judgment Is Appropriate**

The Burton Group may not avoid Lynda Baldwin's motions for summary judgment, which are supported by affidavits, by resting on mere assertions, allegations and factual conclusions. They have not set forth specific facts under the issues of the pleadings showing a genuine issue of material fact that would preclude summary judgment.

## **ARGUMENT I**

### **The Judgment Is Lien Only Against Unexempt Real Property Of The Judgment Debtor, Willard Wood, Owned At The Time**

The Burton Group's main response to Lynda Baldwin's Motions for Summary Judgment and throughout their Brief is the claim that when the Judgment was docketed, a judgment lien attached to the Property pursuant to Section 78-22-1, U.C.A.; that the lien survived Wood's Bankruptcy; that the lien had priority over the subsequent purchase by Baldwins; and that Burtons were entitled to satisfy the Judgment by levying execution on and selling the interest of Baldwins, as alleged "successors-in-interest of Willard Wood". However, Willard Wood conveyed his joint tenancy interest in the Property to Tonay Wood under the recorded Willard Wood Deed (Ex. "A") over one year before the Judgment (Ex. "B") was docketed. Therefore, Willard Wood had no interest in the Property, and no lien attached. Regardless of anything Willard Wood later signed, that conveyance has never been set aside and conclusively conveyed his estate at that time!

"The creation, legal effect, and extent of a judgment are set out in Utah Code Ann., Section 78-22-1." Cox Corp. v. Vertin, 754 P.2d 938, 939 (Utah 1988). The rule of strict construction must be employed in determining whether one is authorized to have a statutory lien. Dean v. McFarland, 500 P.2d 1244 (Wash. 1972). The scope

cannot be extended. American Buildings Company v. Wheeler's Stores, 585 P.2d 845 (Wyo. 1978). Section 78-22-1 provides for "whose" property the lien attaches, and "when" the lien attaches:

"From the time the judgment of the district court or circuit court is docketed and filed in the office of the clerk of the district of the county it becomes a lien upon all the real property of the judgment debtor, not exempt from execution, in the county in which the judgment is entered, owned by him at the time, or by him thereafter acquired during the existence of said lien."

Under the facts of this case, only the unexempt real property of the "judgment debtor", Willard Wood, "owned by him at the time" is exposed to a lien imposed by a judgment in personam. Belnap v. Blain, 575 P.2d 696, 698 (Utah 1978); Taylor Nat. Inc. v. Jensen Bros. Const. Co., 641 P.2d 150, 155 (Utah 1982). A judgment lien commences from the date the judgment is entered. Hartley v. Liberty Park Associates, 774 P.2d 40, 42 (Wash. App. 1989); 49 C.J.S., Judgments, Sec. 466(a), p. 902.

But Willard Wood had effectively divested himself of his interest before Burtons recorded the Judgment, and the Property was no longer "real property of the judgment debtor" under the statute. Rowe v. Schultz, 642 P.2d 881, 882 (Ariz. App. 1982). "Under no circumstances will a judgment or decree take effect upon rights not then existing." 2 Freeman on Judgments (5th Ed.) Sec. 712, p. 1503. "The court views this section as requiring that the judgment debtor shall be the owner, or have a vested interest, in the real estate." Warren v. Rodgers, 475 P.2d 775, 776 (N.M. 1970). If the Property was not owned by him at the time, then no lien attached. Belnap, at 698, citing Majewsky v. Empire Construction Company, 467 P.2d 547 (Cal 1970). See also Romeo v. State, 642 P.2d 172, 176 (N.M. 1982); citing 2 A.C. Freeman On Judgments, Sec. 950 (5th ed. 1925).

In this case, the judgment lien was clearly subordinate to the Willard Wood Deed, and did not attach to any interest of Willard Wood conveyed to Tony Wood thereunder. Where a judgment debtor no longer owns property, filing of a judgment cannot relate back and make the judgment a lien on property theretofore owned by the judgment debtor. 49 C.J.S. Judgments, Sec. 466(b), p. 903. "A judgment creditor cannot place a lien against the property of a judgment debtor's grantee." Lach v. Desert Bank, 746 P.2d 802, 804 (Utah App. 1987). A judgment lien is not effective as to property conveyed from a judgment debtor prior to recording of the judgment. Lack, at 804-05. See also Teed v. Ridco Reality, Inc., 655 P.2d 798, 800-01 (Ariz. App. 1982); Rowe, supra, at 883; citing 10 A. G. Thompson on Real Property, Sec. 5308, at 662 (1957); McClanahan v. Hawkins, 367 P.2d 196 (Wash. 1961). Hannah v. Martinson, 758 P.2d 276, 278-79 (Mont. 1978); and 49 C.J.S. Judgments, Sec. 485, at p. 929 (1947).

Nothing in 78-22-1, U.C.A., imposes a lien on the real property of any person other than the judgment debtor, including an alleged "successor-in-interest". The statute is intended to limit the lien to property of the judgment debtor only, and not give a lien on some other person's property". See Thompson v. Hendricks, 245 P. 724, 726 (Or. 1926); United Finance Co. Gladstone v. King, 590 P.2d 228, 229 (Or. 1979); Partlow v. Clark, 653 P.2d 568, 569 (Or. App. 1983); and Wilson v. Willamette Industries, 569 P.2d 609, 611 (Or. 1977). Lynda Baldwin is not "judgment debtors", nor a "successors-in-interest" of Willard Wood. Baldwins are transferees of Tonya Wood. Nor does the statute does not authorizes a lien on Tonya Wood's independent, joint tenancy interest. "Even though a judgment creditor held a lien on one joint tenant's undivided one-half interest in the real property,



no lien existed on the second joint tenant's interest in the property." First Nat. Bank of South Glenn v. Energy Fuels Inc. Corp., 618 P.2d 1115 (Colo. 1980).

Willard Wood delivered the Willard Wood Deed to Tonya Wood, but later executed the Kofoed Trust Deed, thus creating the appearance on the public record that he still had some "naked interest" in to the Property. Whenever one has no beneficial interest "there is nothing to which the judgment lien can attach". Belnap, at 699. A judgment lien attaches only to actual and not to apparent interest of judgment debtor; for the protection of equities, a judgment lien is confined to actual interest which judgment debtor had at the time the lien attached. Thompson, at 725-26.

Nor did a judgment lien attach to the independent, one-half interest Tony Wood acquired from directly from Kofoeds and later conveyed to Baldwins. If a non-judgment debtor is the owner of one-half, joint tenancy interest in property, and conveyance thereof vests in the transferee a title unassailable as fraudulent as to creditors of the judgment debtor who hold the other one-half interest. See McHenry F.S., Inc. v. Clausen, 491 P.2d 592, 594 (Colo. 1971); and Schwaller Lumber Co., Inc. v. Watson, 505 p.2d 640, 645 (Kan. 1973).

It is clear from Section 78-22-1, U.C.A., that a judgment lien is confined to the "actual interest" in the Property which the "judgment debtor", Willard Wood, "owned at the time" the Judgment was docketed. Since Willard Wood had no interest in the Property at the time the Judgment was docketed, no valid judgment lien attached.

## ARGUMENT II

### **The Judgment Is Void Pursuant To Willard Wood's Bankruptcy; And Judgment Lien Did Not Survive The Bankruptcy**

In April 1983, Willard Wood filed a Chapter 7 petition for voluntary bankruptcy together with with Tonya Wood, (Ex. "C"), was discharged in August 1983, and the case was closed in December 1983, (R. 470, #4). Burtons were listed as judgment creditors and given notice of Wood's Bankruptcy, (R. 291, #24; R. 389, #1), and never denied it. In August 1983, Willard Wood was discharged in bankruptcy, and his case was close in December 1983, (R. 470, #4). Therefore, under 11 U.S.C., Section 524(a)(1), the Judgment is "void" to the extent of the personal liability of Willard Wood:

**"Effect of discharge. (a) A discharge in a case under this title --**

**(1) voids any judgment at any time obtained, to the extent that such judgment is a determination of the personal liability of the debtor ..."**

The Judgment [was] an **unsecured claim**, fully dischargeable under that bankruptcy statute. Section 524(a)(1) merely voids judgments to the extent they are unsecured, and a judgment creditor cannot seek recovery in his judgment other than that obtainable against his security. In Re Sillani, 9 B.R. 188, 189 (S.D. Florida 1981). The Burton Group claims a valid judgment lien attached to the Property prior to Wood's Bankruptcy. But as "lien claimants", they never filed a proof of claim. (R. 567, #5) Therefore, they must rely solely on their "alleged" lien. De Laney v. City and County of Denver, 185 F.2d 246, 251 (10th Cir. 1950).

In their Brief, page 44, the Burton Group state that, notwithstanding the discharge of Willard Wood's personal liability under the Judgment, "Burtons' judgment lien was upon the property,

which passed to Baldwins upon Wood's execution of the September 30, 1981 Warranty Deed." They further argue that 11 U.S.C., Section 506(d) "... expressly excludes from discharge liens which have not been made a part of the bankruptcy proceeding, either by the filing of a proof of claim or by being made an "allowed secured claim". They cite the legislative history, Matter of Tarnow, 749 F.2d 464 (7th Cir. 1984), and De Laney, supra, as supporting authority.

However Matter of Tarnow and DeLaney are distinguishable because both concern statutory liens that attached to the property prior to the debtor's bankruptcy. In this case, a valid lien never attached to the Property prior to Wood's Bankruptcy! If there was no lien, it certainly couldn't be "passed to Baldwins" under any scenerio.

### ARGUMENT III

#### **Burtons Had No Remedy To Levy Execution Against The Property Without A Valid Statutory Lien And An Enforceable Judgment**

Rule 69(a), U.R.C.P., provides that the "[p]rocess to enforce a judgment shall be by a writ of execution unless the court otherwise directs ..." The statute seems to confine the legal process to enforcement of a "judgment". It says nothing about enforcement of a "judgment lien". Arguably, a writ of execution is not the legal process for enforcement of a "lien", in and of itself, in absence of a valid and an enforceable judgment to support it. "... Ordinarily, a judgment lien is enforced by a levy or sale under the judgment creating it." But, "... the lien generally terminates when the judgment ceases to be enforceable ..." Belnap v. Blain, 575 P.2d 696, 700 (Utah 1978); quoting 2 Freeman On Judgments (5th Ed.), Sec. 1017a, p. 2123. In any event, for issuance of a writ of execution on real property, a valid lien must attach whether or not an enforceable judgment is required. But neither is present in this case.

Nonetheless, just as Section 78-22-1, U.C.A., specifically confines the lien to the unexempt real property of the judgment debtor, Rule 69(b), U.R.C.P., also limits the writ of execution to the property of the judgment debtor, and does not authorize execution on some other person's property. The Rule states that " [u]less the execution otherwise directs, the officer must execute the writ against the property of the judgment debtor ..." Even if there was a valid lien on the Property supported by an enforceable judgment under which a writ of execution may duly issue, the Execution (Ex. "D") authorizes a levy on and sale of only the unexempt real property of Willard Wood, the judgment debtor, not that of Baldwins:

"THESE ARE THEREFORE, to command you to .. levy on and sell .. the unexempt real property of the said Willard D. Wood."

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